
Town of Waynesville, NC  
Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting 
Town Hall, 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC  28786                           
Date:      September 14, 2021            Time:  6:00 p.m.  

 

 
The agenda and all related documentation may be accessed electronically at www.waynesvillenc.gov.  

Click on “Government/Mayor & Board” to download materials for town board meetings. 
 

Consider the environment    Conserve resources    Print only when necessary 
 

The Town of Waynesville provides accessible facilities, programs, and services for all people, in compliance with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA). Should you need assistance or accommodation for this meeting, please contact the Town Clerk at:  

 (828) 452-2491 eward@waynesvillenc.gov  
 

A. CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Gary Caldwell 
 
1. Welcome/Calendar/Announcements 
 

 
B. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
C. CONSENT AGENDA 
  

All items below are routine by the Board of Aldermen and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on 
these items unless a Board member so requests. In which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
with other items listed in the Regular Agenda. 

 
i. Adoption of minutes of the August 24th regular meeting 
 

Motion:  To approve the Consent Agenda as presented or corrected 
 
D. PROCLAMATIONS 
 
 Constitution Week 

• Mayor Gary Caldwell 
 

Recognizing Kiwanis Club of Waynesville’s 70th Year 

• Mayor Gary Caldwell 
 

National Day of Service and Remembrance – September 11 

• Mayor Gary Caldwell 
 
D. PRESENTATION 
 
2. North Carolina Disabled American Veterans Chapter #89 Presentation 

• Paul Taylor, Adjutant 

http://www.waynesvillenc.gov/
mailto:eward@waynesvillenc.gov


TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE – REGULAR SESSION AGENDA 
September 14, 2021 

- 2 - 
 

Agenda Posted September 9, 2021  Page 2 of 2 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
3. Refinancing Debt and Financing Repayment of Fire Dept. Loan and Fire Tanker 

• Town Manager Rob Hites 
 
Motion:  Request a Special Meeting to be held on Friday September 17th at a time to be 
determined. 
 
E. NEW BUSINESS 
 
4. Purchasing Policy Revision 

• Autumn Lyvers, Finance Director 
 
5. Fiscal Year 2022 Capital Project Additions 

• Jesse Fowler, Assistant Town Manager 
 
Motion:  To approve the Purchasing Policy revision/addition as presented. 
  
F. COMMUNICATION FROM STAFF 
 
5.  Manager’s Report 

• Rob Hites, Town Manager 
 

Request to provide at pyrotechnics display at Laurel Ridge Country Club 
 
Motion:  Approve the request as per your direction. 
 
 

7. Town Attorney Report 

• Town Attorney,  Martha Bradley 
 
G. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR AND BOARD 
 
H. CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion:  Enter into Closed Session For discussion of the annual evaluation of the Town 
Manager  NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6) – Personnel 
 
 
I. ADJOURN  



 

 

 
CALENDAR 

September 2021 

Saturday September 18 Tuscola Band Day – Main Street – 8:00 – 4:00 pm 

Saturday September 18 Fall Rockin Block Party – Main Street – 7:00 pm 

Sunday September 19 Public Art Dog Show – Hart Theater – 5:00 pm 

Saturday September 25 Power of Pink – Commerce Street Frog Lever – 9:00 – 11:00 am 

Friday September 24 Friday Night Street Dance – Main Street – 6:30 

Tuesday September 28 Board of Aldermen Meeting – Regular Session 

Saturday October 9 38
th
 Annual Church Street Art & Crafts – Main Street – 10:00 am 

Tuesday October 12 Board of Aldermen Meeting – Regular Session 

Tuesday October 26 Board of Aldermen Meeting – Regular Session 

Saturday October 30 Treats on the Street – Main Street – 5:00 pm 

Tuesday November 9 Board of Aldermen Meeting – Regular Session 

Thursday November 11 

Veterans Day 

Town Offices Closed 

Tuesday November 23 Board of Alderman Meeting- Regular Session 

Thursday & Friday 

November 25 & 26 

Town Offices Closed  - Thanksgiving 

Friday December 3 Waynesville Christmas Tree Lighting – Main Street - 6:00 pm 

Monday December 6 Waynesville Christmas Parade – Main Street - 6:00 pm 

Saturday December 11 Night Before Christmas – Main Street – 6:00 p, 

Tuesday December 14 Board of Aldermen Meeting – Regular Session 

December 23, 24 & 27th Town Closed – Christmas Holidays 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE 

PO Box 100 

16 South Main Street 

Waynesville, NC  28786 

 Phone (828) 452-2491 • Fax (828) 456-2000 

www.waynesvillenc.gov 
 



 

BoA Calendar 

September 2021 

 

Board and Commission Meetings – September 2021 

 

ABC Board 

 

ABC Office – 52 Dayco Drive September 21  

3
rd
 Tuesday    

10:00 AM 

Board of Adjustment  

 

Town Hall – 9 S. Main Street September 7 

1st Tuesday     

5:30 PM 

Downtown Waynesville 

Association 

 

UCB Board Room – 165 North Main 

 

September 23 

4
th
 Thursday 

12 Noon 

Firefighters Relief Fund Board Fire Station 1 – 1022 N. Main Street Meets as needed  

No meeting currently scheduled  

 

Historic Preservation Commission Town Hall – 9 S. Main Street September 1 

1
st
 Wednesday     

2:00 PM 

Planning Board Town Hall – 9 S. Main Street September 20 

3
rd
 Monday  

5:30 PM 

Public Art Commission Town Hall – 9 S. Main Street September 9 

2
nd

 Thursdays    

4:00 PM 

Recreation & Parks Advisory 

Commission 

Rec Center Office – 550 Vance Street September 15 

3
rd
 Wednesday     

5:30 PM 

Waynesville Housing Authority Waynesville Towers – 65 Church Street September 14 

2
nd

 Tuesday 

3:30 PM 

 

  

 

 

  

         



 
Town of Waynesville 
Regular Meeting August 24, 2021 

Page 1 of 6 
 

MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
Regular Meeting 
August 24, 2021 

 
THE WAYNESVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMEN held a regular meeting on Tuesday August 24, 

2021 at 6:00 pm. in the Town Hall Board Room located at 9 South Main Street Waynesville, NC. 
 

 
A.  CALL TO ORDER  
 
Mayor Gary Caldwell called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm with the following members present: 
  Mayor Gary Caldwell 
  Alderman Anthony Sutton 
  Alderman Jon Feichter  
  Alderman Chuck Dickson  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Julia Freeman was absent. 
   
The following staff members were present: 
  Rob Hites, Town Manager 
  Jesse Fowler, Assistant Town Manager 
  Eddie Ward, Town Clerk 
  Martha Bradley, Town Attorney 
  Police Chief David Adams 
  Julie Grasty Asset Services Manager 
  Jeff Stines, Public Services Director 
    
The following media representative was present: 
  Becky Johnson, The Mountaineer 
   
 1. Welcome/Calendar/Announcements 
 
Mayor Gary Caldwell welcomed everyone to the meeting  and reminded them of the upcoming 
events including the Hazelwood Baptist Car show on August 28, and the Labor Day Holiday on 
Monday September 6.   
 
Mayor Caldwell asked for a moment of silence for the people of the Clyde, Canton, and Cruso 
communities who lost lives and properties in these areas.   
 
Town Manager Rob Hites told everyone that the Town has offered aid to these communities, and 
employees from the Police Department, Inspectors from the Development Services Department, 
and Public Services with equipment, have been in the area helping with the massive amounts of 



 
Town of Waynesville 
Regular Meeting August 24, 2021 

Page 2 of 6 
 

debris and clean up.  He said the Town is recording the hours that employees work and will 
continue to be of assistance if needed.   
 
 
B. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Peggy Hannah 
Hemlock Street 
Waynesville, NC   

 
Ms. Hannah thanked the Public Service and Police staff for their efforts in working in the Cruso 
in the aftermath of the floods on August 17, 2021. 
 
 
C. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All items below are routine by the Board of Aldermen and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate 
discussion on these items unless a Board member so requests. In which event, the item will be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and considered with other items listed in the Regular Agenda. 
 
i. Adoption of minutes of the August 10th regular meeting 
ii. Adoption of minutes of the August 11th special called meeting 
iii. No Parking Sign Street Name Addendum 
iiii. Special Event Permits – Tuscola Band Day 
 

A motion was made by Alderman Jon Feichter, seconded by  Alderman Anthony Sutton,                         
to approve the consent agenda as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
D. PRESENTATION 
 
2.   Presentation by Dr. Peter Bates (Forest Stewards) on prescribed burns 

• Rob Hites, Town Manager 
 
Manager Hites told the Board that Dr. Bates and the North Carolina Forest Service had been in 
discussion concerning the need for controlled burns in several areas of the watershed.   These 
places have too much undergrowth for the large hardwood forests that covered the watershed 
in the past.  He said that fire promotes the germination of certain hardwoods.   
 
Dr. Bates explained how  the prescribed burning will be conducted by the North Carolina Forest 
Service at no charge to the Town.  He said there are significant portions of the watershed where 
very little burning has been in the past eighty years.   The prescribed burning will manage fuels 



 
Town of Waynesville 
Regular Meeting August 24, 2021 

Page 3 of 6 
 

to prevent catastrophic wildfires in the future.  The area that will be burned is a small area (12 
acres) has been designated for an initial burn.  
  
The Board had several questions including if there has ever been a prescribed burn get out of 
control.  Dr. Bates said that is a rarity because the Forest Service takes into consideration the 
weather conditions, wind, and dryness of the property before it is burned.   
 
Alderman Feichter asked Dr. Bates if he and the Forest Service could do a presentation for the 
public before the initial burn.  That will be scheduled soon.    
 
A motion was made by Alderman Anthony Sutton, seconded by Alderman Chuck Dickson, to 
approve controlled burning in specific locations.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
E. NEW BUSINESS 
 
3. Greenview Drive Traffic Study 

• Jesse Fowler, Assistant Town Manager 
 
Assistant Town Manager Jesse Fowler told the Board that the Town had been approached by a 
resident of Greenview Drive concerning speeding on that street.  He said the 20 mile per hour 
sign had been posted in the past but has since been taken down sometime between 2013 and 
the present.   
 
J. M. Teague Engineering  completed a traffic study on Greenview Drive and found that the most 
vehicles are traveling between 25 – 35 miles per hour.  That drive is narrow and winding with 
limited sight distances, the Engineer recommends that the posted speed limit be no greater that 
25 miles per hour.   
 

Bess Crider 
Greenview Drive 

 
Ms. Crider spoke to the Board and said there are a lot of pedestrians on the street and that she 
has had to pull off on  the side many times in order not to be sideswiped by other cars.  She asked 
that the Board also look at Country Club – Longview section, and possibly put signs there too.   
 
A motion was made by Alderman Jon Feichter, seconded by Alderman Anthony Sutton,  to post 
the speed limit of Greenview Drive at 20 miles per hour.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

Dick Young 
Meadow Street 

 



 
Town of Waynesville 
Regular Meeting August 24, 2021 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Mr. Young spoke and indicated the same had happened to the Meadow Street where he lives.  
There was a sign there for 20 miles an hour but was taken down with no explanation.  He asked 
the Board to consider replacing that sign with a new 20 mile an hour speed limit.  
  
After much discussion, the consensus of the Board was to add Meadow Street to the Ordinance 
as a 20 mile an hour street.  Signs will be placed on the street. 
 
A motion was made by Alderman Chuck Dickson, seconded by Alderman Anthony Sutton, to 
post the speed limit of Meadow Street at 20 miles an hour.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
4. Award Janitorial Contract for Town Facilities. 

• Julie Grasty, Asset Services Manager 
 
Julie Grasty, Asset Services Manager, brought before the Board a janitorial contract for Town 
facilities.  She said that the current janitorial service had give notice of termination of contract 
for the end of August.  An RFP had been sent out to eight different firms, and the lowest bid 
received was from Reliable Facility Group in the amount of $68,964.00 annually.   
 
A motion was made by Alderman Jon Feichter, seconded by Alderman Anthony Sutton, to 
award the Janitorial Contract to Reliable Facility Group with the contract ending June 20, 2023.  
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
F. COMMUNICATION FROM STAFF 
 
5. Manager’s Report 
• Jesse Fowler, Assistant Town Manager  
 
Scheduling a closed session to conduct the annual review of the Town Manager 
 
Assistant Manager Fowler asked the Board to schedule a closed session at the next regularly 
scheduled meeting to conduct the annual review of the Town Manager.   
 
A motion was made by Alderman Chuck Dickson, seconded by Alderman Jon Feichter, to 
schedule a closed session to be held at the next regularly scheduled meeting to conduct the 
annual review of the Town Manager.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
6. Golden Leaf Grant for Countywide Water Interconnection 

• Town Manager, Rob Hites 
 
Manager Hites explained to the Board that McGill and Associates has completed a Countywide 
study that makes the case for  the Towns and Water Districts to be interconnected for fire 



 
Town of Waynesville 
Regular Meeting August 24, 2021 

Page 5 of 6 
 

protection and short-term emergency water issues. The Towns do not have the storage capacity 
to handle a major fire or line failure without the help of neighboring municipalities. He said that 
currently Waynesville is interconnected with Maggie Valley, Lake Junaluska and Junaluska 
Sanitary District but our storage capacity limited. On a regular workday water demand at 
Champion, HCC,  Haywood Hospital, and that area of Clyde can draw down the Tuscola Tank and 
reduce the water pressure in that entire area. The study recommends several improvements to 
the system with the most important being the interconnection of Canton with our extended 
water system.  
 
Manager Hites asked to aid the County and Towns in drafting a Golden Leaf Grant request to 
improve the water situation around Tuscola High School. The area is about to experience 
substantial growth and further burden the Tuscola Tank. As for funding, the Town will not be 
expending its own funds in the project.   

 
A motion was made by Alderman Chuck Dickson, seconded by Alderman Anthony Sutton, to 
permit the Town staff to aide in drafting a grant for improvements to the Countywide 
emergency water system.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
7. Town Attorney Report 

• Town Attorney,  Martha Bradley 
 
Attorney Bradley had nothing to report 
 
 
G. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR AND BOARD 
 
Alderman Feichter commended Alderman Sutton for the work he has done in the reorganization 
of the DWA.  The rest of the Board agreed that he had put in a lot of time and effort in this 
process. 
 
Mayor Caldwell asked Assistant Manager Fowler to begin working on the gazebo on Miller Street, 
the project on Depot Street, bump-outs, and a pavilion at the Recreation Center.  He asked Mr. 
Stines to have a Tuscola High School Mountaineers banner placed on the Municipal Building. 
 
Alderman Feichter asked about the progress of the bathrooms at the OK Park.  Assistant Manager 
Fowler stated that the plans from Civil Design Engineers will be coming shortly.  He asked Public 
Service Director Jeff Stines about the timeline for paving on Pigeon Street.  Mr. Stines  stated that 
the award for the contract would be this year, and paving would begin in spring 2022.   
 
Manager Hites told the Board that Mountain Creek Plaza, formerly the Bilo store,  had submitted 
plans for building permits for the apartment complex.   
 



 
Town of Waynesville 
Regular Meeting August 24, 2021 

Page 6 of 6 
 

H. ADJOURN 
 
With no further business, a motion was made by Alderman Anthony Sutton, seconded by 
Alderman  Chuck Dickson, to adjourn the meeting at 7:00 pm. The motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 
 ATTEST:  
              
__________________________      _________________________                            
Robert W. Hites, Town Manager                                                            Gary Caldwell, Mayor 
 
 
 
_____________________________  
Eddie Ward, Town Clerk 





 

 

 

 

Town of Waynesville                                                   NORTH CAROLINA 
Proclamation 

 

Recognizing Kiwanis Club of Waynesville’s 70th Year 

 

WHEREAS, the Kiwanis Club of Waynesville has a rich and storied 70 Year Tradition of 

providing for the children of Waynesville and throughout Haywood County. Kiwanis is a 

global organization of volunteers dedicated to improving the world, one child and one 

community at a time; and 

 

WHEREAS, in addition to improving lives, Kiwanis Club members promote the development 

of community leaders, positive role models, intercultural understanding and cooperation, 

opportunities for fellowship, personal growth, professional development and community 

service; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Kiwanis Club of Waynesville has a unique partnership with the Town of 

Waynesville,  Haywood County Schools with the annual 3rd Grade Dictionary distribution, 

sponsors Key Clubs in two Haywood County high schools and sponsors the Aktion Club for 

adults living with developmental disabilities.  Each of these clubs continues the Kiwanis 

tradition of service projects and community service activities; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Kiwanis Club of Waynesville is acting as a partner with Waynesville Parks 

and Recreation to make significant improvements to Recreation & Kiwanis Park; and 

 

WHEREAS, with the generous annual funding source through the Jim and Betty Scott Fund 

and the funds raised each year, Kiwanis has been able to fund grants, scholarships and 

sponsorships during the past 70 years equaling more than $1,000,000. 

 

WHEREAS, the service provided by the Kiwanis Club of Waynesville will continue to have a 

positive impact on our community and citizens; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, We, the Board of Aldermen of the Town of Waynesville, do hereby 

recognize the Kiwanis Club of Waynesville’s 70 years of meaningful and invaluable service 

and honor its members for their contributions to the betterment of life in our Haywood County 

Community.  

  

Adopted this 14th day of September   

    

  ______________________________ 

            Gary Caldwell ,Mayor 

              Town of Waynesville, North Carolina 



 

 

Town of Waynesville 

Proclamation 
 

 
NATIONAL DAY OF SERVICE AND REMEMBRANCE 

SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 11, 2021 

 
WHEREAS, in an unprovoked and senseless act of terrorism, four civilian aircrafts 
were hijacked on September 11, 2001, and crashed in New York City, Pennsylvania 
and the Pentagon, resulting in a momentous loss of innocent U.S. lives of all 
heritages; and 
 
WHEREAS, while we continue to recover from the loss of innocent lives, the spirit of 
the U.S. has been revitalized, giving way to expressions of patriotism; and 
 
WHEREAS, inspired by the heroism of our nation’s public service personnel, military 
service members and countless volunteers, our nation found unity and strength; and 
 
WHEREAS, from the tragedy of September 11 emerged a stronger nation, renewed 
by the spirit of national pride, and a true love of country; and 
 
WHEREAS, Americans also have fought back against terror by choosing to 
overcome evil with good by loving their neighbors as they would like to be loved, 
contributing to relief efforts, and volunteering their time to aid those in need;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that I, J. Gary Caldwell, by virtue of the 
authority vested in me as Mayor of the Town of Waynesville, do hereby proclaim 
September 11, 2021, as  
 

NATIONAL DAY OF SERVICE AND REMEMBRANCE 
 

in the Town of Waynesville and urge our citizens to recognize the heroism of firefighters, 
rescue and law enforcement personnel, military service members and the many 
volunteers who responded to these tragic events with courage, selfless compassion, 
determination and skill; and to remember the victims and innocent lives lost as a result of 
the tragic events on September 11, 2001.  
 

 This the 11th day of September 2021. 
 
 
 _________________________ 
                                                                     J. Gary Caldwell, Mayor  
 
 
 

 



TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMEN  
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION  

Meeting Date:  September 14, 2021 
 

  

SUBJECT: North Carolina Disabled American Veterans Chapter #89 Presentation  
 
AGENDA INFORMATION:  
  
Agenda Location:  Presentation 
Item Number:   D2  
Contact:  Paul Taylor, Adjutant 
Presenter:    Paul Taylor, Adjutant 
    
BRIEF SUMMARY:   
 
Chapter 89 of the North Carolina Disabled American Veterans (NCDAV) wishes to present to the 
board of Aldermen. Paul Taylor, Adjutant will be presenting to the Board of Aldermen on behalf 
of the NCDAV chapter 98. 
 
MOTION FOR CONSIDERATION:   
 
FUNDING SOURCE/IMPACT:  General Fund 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

• Letter to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen  
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
I have spoken with Mr. Taylor, and he informed me that the NCDAV would like to request a donation 
from the Town of Waynesville. However, he was uncertain how much was appropriate to ask for. 





TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMEN  
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION  

Meeting Date: 9/14/21 
  

SUBJECT:  Refinancing Debt and Financing Repayment of Fire Dept. Loan and Fire Tanker. 

 
AGENDA INFORMATION:  
 
Agenda Location:   Public Hearing  
Item Number:    E3 
Department:    Administration 
Contact:    Rob Hites 
Presenter:    Rob Hites  
    
BRIEF SUMMARY:  Alderman Dickson requested that the Town staff and our bond attorney Sanford Holshouser 
investigate the possibility of refinancing the USDA Loan on Fire Station #1 and the City Hall. When the Town 
purchased the Fire Station #2 property, we discussed the possibility of using a loan to pay back the General Fund 
Balance. Market conditions are so favorable I suggest the Town include a replacement Fire Tanker ($380,000) in 
the package. Ashley Anderson of Sanford Holshouser has been contacted by BB&T requesting these types of 
Financing packages and they plan to submit a proposal on Thursday 9/9/21. The terms and interest rate that they 
propose will give us an idea if the refinancing of the two loans in worth the administrative fees.  

 
We have discovered that the City Hall cannot be refinanced. It does not permit pre-payment. We do have a loan 
for the Public Works facility if approximately $980,000 that can be refinanced though the current interest rate is 
close to 2%.  
 
Autumn, Ashley Anderson, and I had a conversation with the staff of the Local Government Commission 
concerning our proposed refinancing and new debt.  The staff said that they would not permit the Town to issue 
new debt for a longer term than the original loans so our payback may be lower than we expected. They also wish 
to see the tax card on the land and an estimate of the truck.  The pre-application is due before the meeting. 
Autumn has prepared the form application and sent it to Ashley. We will have a report on the payback once we get 
the numbers from BB&T.  
 
One of the stipulations that the LGC staff requires is that the Town hold a public hearing on the refinancing before 
the agenda is set for the October meeting of the LGC. If we miss the October meeting, we will not be able to 
submit the refinancing package until the January meeting (once the audits are submitted and reviewed).  In order 
to meet the agenda deadline, we need to hold a public hearing on Friday September 17th.  We took the liberty to 
advertise it over the weekend.  The hearing can be held any time on Friday and the presentation will be similar to 
the presentation on the 14th.  
 
MOTION FOR CONSIDERATION:  Request a Special Meeting to be held on Friday September 17th at a time to be 
determined. 
 

FUNDING SOURCE/IMPACT:  General 

 
ATTACHMENTS: Tax Card for the Tolar Property 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS   When we receive BB&T’s proposal for refinancing Fire 

Station #1 and the Public Works Building, we can determine if it is cost effective to proceed. We will know if 

the proposal for financing the land and Fire Tanker is attractive enough to submit to the LGC.  





































TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMEN  
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION  

Meeting Date:  September 14, 2021 
 

  
SUBJECT: Purchasing Policy Revision 
 
AGENDA INFORMATION:  
  
Agenda Location: New Business 
Item Number:     
Department: Finance    
Contact: Autumn Lyvers, Finance Director; Lisa Burnett, Purchasing Supervisor    
Presenter:  Autumn Lyvers, Finance Director 
    
BRIEF SUMMARY:  The Uniform Guidance (2 C.F.R Part 200) requires all federal grant recipients to have 
written procurement policies that conform to applicable federal law and Uniform Guidance 
requirements (2 C.F.R. 200.318(a)). Our current Purchasing Policy was last updated in August 2013. We 
have not received Federal monies since the Uniform Guidance requirement was put into place in 2018. 
The Finance Department is requesting the Board of Aldermen approve the attached “Town of 
Waynesville Uniform Guidance Procurement Policy” to be added as Section 18 to the existing Town of 
Waynesville Purchasing Policy and Procedures. The Uniform Guidance Procurement Policy outlines 
purchasing requirements when federal monies are involved (for example, American Rescue Plan Act 
funds).   

 
MOTION FOR CONSIDERATION:  To approve the Purchasing Policy revision/addition as presented.  

 

FUNDING SOURCE/IMPACT:  No additional funding needed.    

 

       9/7/2021   

Autumn Lyvers, Finance Director   Date 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Town of Waynesville Uniform Guidance Procurement Policy 
Local Government Commission Memo – Uniform Guidance Procurement Standards (issued 2018) 
 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 















































TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMEN  
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION  

Meeting Date:  September 14, 2021 
 

  
SUBJECT: FY2022 Capital Project Additions 
 
AGENDA INFORMATION:  
  
Agenda Location: New Business 
Item Number:     
Department:  Administration/Board of Aldermen    
Contact: Jesse Fowler, Assistant Town Manager 
Presenter: Jesse Fowler, Assistant Town Manager 
    
BRIEF SUMMARY:  During the FY2022 budget process, the following capital projects were discussed but 
not included in the final adopted budget: 
 

1) Main Street Gazebo – estimated cost of $50,000 
2) Obama-King Park Restrooms – estimated cost of $150,000 
3) Skate Park Pavilion – estimated cost of $60,000 

 
The total cost of these projects amounts to $260,000. At the request of Mayor Caldwell, these projects 
and the associated budget amendments are being brought back before the Board for further discussion 
and approval.      
 
MOTION FOR CONSIDERATION: 

1. Motion to approve General Fund Budget Amendment (Amendment No. 4) – Main Street Gazibo 
2. Motion to approve General Fund Budget Amendment (Amendment No. 5) – Obama-King Park 

Restrooms 
3. Motion to approve General Fund Budget Amendment (Amendment No. 6) – Skate Park Pavilion 

 

FUNDING SOURCE/IMPACT:  These projects will be funded with Fund Balance.   

 

       9/7/2021   
Autumn Lyvers, Finance Director   Date 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
General Fund Budget Amendment (Amendment No.4) – Main Street Gazebo 
General Fund Budget Amendment (Amendment No.5) – Obama-King Park Restrooms 
General Fund Budget Amendment (Amendment No.6) – Skate Park Pavilion 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



Ordinance No. _________ 
 

Amendment No. 4 to the 2021-2022 Budget Ordinance 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen of the Town of Waynesville, wishes to amend the 
2021-2022 Budget Ordinance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Aldermen of the Town of 
Waynesville that the 2021-2022 Budget Ordinance be amended as follows: 

 
General Fund: 
 

 Increase the following revenues: 
  Other Financing Sources  

 Fund Balance Appropriated 103900-493992           $ 50,000  
 Total General Fund revenue increase               $ 50,000 

 
(Additional revenues needed to fund a new gazebo for Main Street.) 

 
   

Increase the following appropriations: 
 Governing Board 
  Capital Improvements  104110-545900            $  50,000 
                                                                                                            _______ 
Total General Fund appropriations increase                                                 $  50,000 
  

Adopted this 14th day of September 2021. 
 Town of Waynesville 
 
                                                                                 ____________________________ 
                                                                                J. Gary Caldwell 
                                                                                Mayor  
Attest: 
 
__________________________ 
Eddie Ward 
Town Clerk 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
__________________________ 
Martha Sharpe Bradley, PLLC 
Town Attorney                                                                                 
                                                                                 



Ordinance No. _________ 
 

Amendment No. 5 to the 2021-2022 Budget Ordinance 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen of the Town of Waynesville, wishes to amend the 
2021-2022 Budget Ordinance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Aldermen of the Town of 
Waynesville that the 2021-2022 Budget Ordinance be amended as follows: 

 
General Fund: 
 

 Increase the following revenues: 
  Other Financing Sources  

 Fund Balance Appropriated 103900-493992           $ 150,000  
 Total General Fund revenue increase               $ 150,000 

 
(Additional revenues needed to fund Obama-King Park restrooms.) 

 
   

Increase the following appropriations: 
 Parks & Recreation 
  Capital Improvements  106120-545900            $ 150,000 
                                                                                                            ________ 
Total General Fund appropriations increase                                                 $ 150,000 
  

Adopted this 14th day of September 2021. 
 Town of Waynesville 
 
                                                                                 ____________________________ 
                                                                                J. Gary Caldwell 
                                                                                Mayor  
Attest: 
 
__________________________ 
Eddie Ward 
Town Clerk 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
__________________________ 
Martha Sharpe Bradley, PLLC 
Town Attorney                                                                                 
                                                                                 



Ordinance No. _________ 
 

Amendment No. 5 to the 2021-2022 Budget Ordinance 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen of the Town of Waynesville, wishes to amend the 
2021-2022 Budget Ordinance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Aldermen of the Town of 
Waynesville that the 2021-2022 Budget Ordinance be amended as follows: 

 
General Fund: 
 

 Increase the following revenues: 
  Other Financing Sources  

 Fund Balance Appropriated 103900-493992           $ 60,000  
 Total General Fund revenue increase               $ 60,000 

 
(Additional revenues needed to fund a Skate Park Pavilion.) 

 
   

Increase the following appropriations: 
 Parks & Recreation 
  Capital Improvements  106120-545900            $ 60,000 
                                                                                                            ________ 
Total General Fund appropriations increase                                                 $ 60,000 
  

Adopted this 14th day of September 2021. 
 Town of Waynesville 
 
                                                                                 ____________________________ 
                                                                                J. Gary Caldwell 
                                                                                Mayor  
Attest: 
 
__________________________ 
Eddie Ward 
Town Clerk 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
__________________________ 
Martha Sharpe Bradley, PLLC 
Town Attorney                                                                                 
                                                                                 



TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMEN  
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION  

Meeting Date: 9/14/21 

  
SUBJECT:  Request to provide at pyrotechnics display at Laurel Ridge Country 

        Club 
 

AGENDA INFORMATION:  
 
Agenda Location:    Manager’s Report  
Item Number:     
Department:   Administration 
Contact:    Rob Hites 
Presenter:    Rob Hites  
    
BRIEF SUMMARY:  See Attachments 

 
MOTION FOR CONSIDERATION:  
Approve the request as per your direction.  
 

FUNDING SOURCE/IMPACT:  None 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Laurel Ridge Permit Packet, Letter to Town regarding the event. 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:    
The Town receives a number of complaints every week regarding the firing of 

pyrotechnics. It is fashionable for weddings and other events to culminate in a 

fireworks display. The fireworks display is being carried out by a very 

reputable company, so the liability lies with Zambelli . I am unsure how you 

would like the staff to respond but I know that this request will set a 

precedent for a number of requests from both Laurel Hills and the renovated 

Waynesville Country Club. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

           September 2, 2021 

 

Board of Aldermen 

Waynesville, NC 

 

 

To Whom it May Concern, 

  

 My name is Tony Sawdey and I represent Zambelli Fireworks as the Project Manager for the North 

Carolina region. We would like to propose the firing of a fireworks display on October 9, 2021 at the Laurel 

Ridge Country Club for a private event at the club. The display is scheduled to be fired at 10:35 pm. My lead 

technician and crew would arrive onsite at approximately 2:00 pm to begin the set-up. The loading of the 

product would begin about 3:30 pm and be completed and tested by approximately 8:00 pm. This time frame 

can be affected by weather, but the display will be ready to fire on time. The attached permit packet has all of 

the technical data as well as the site map which meets or exceeds NFPA 1123 regulations for fall-out zone. 

 

 Zambelli is a National fireworks company based out of Warrendale, PA. We are known throughout the 

country as a dependable and reputable company. We have the largest AAA insurance policy available in the 

industry and an excellent safety record. For additional company information, feel free to view our web-site at 

https://www.zambellifireworks.com/.  

 

I thank you for your consideration in this matter and look forward to working with the City to produce a safe 

and entertaining fireworks display for the client. 

Regards, 

 

 

Tony Sawdey   

Project Manager                                                                                                   

218-820-2372 Cell 

tsawdey@zambellifireworks.com 

Zambelli Fireworks Mfg. Co. 

1060 Holland Drive- Suite J 

Boca Raton, FL  33487 

(561) 395-0955 ext. 1205 Office 

 

https://www.zambellifireworks.com/
mailto:tsawdey@zambellifireworks.com









































	21-Sept 14-Item-1a-Agenda-BoA working
	21-Sept 14-Item-1b-Calendar
	21-Sept 14-Item-2aci-Aug 24  Regular Meeting Minutes 2
	Proclamation Constitution Week
	Kiwanis Club Waynesville Proclomation[1]
	National Day of Service and Remembrance 2020
	NCDAV Cover Letter
	NCDAV Letter to the Board
	Refinancing Fire Dept and Public Works Building 9-14-21
	Refinancing of Fire Station #1 Tolar Property and Fire Tanker LGC Application 9-7-21
	Agenda Item Request 9.7.2021 - Purchasing Policy
	Town of Waynesville Uniform Guidance Procurement Policy
	LGC Memo
	amendment to 2021 2022 - No. 4-6 Cover Sheet
	TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE BOARD OF ALDERMEN
	REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION
	Meeting Date:  September 14, 2021



	amendment to 2021 2022 - No. 4
	amendment to 2021 2022 - No. 5 
	amendment to 2021 2022 - No. 6
	Laural Ridge Pyrotechnics Display Agenda Cover Sheet 9-14-21
	Laurel Ridge Fire Works  Letter 9-14-21
	Sherry Hixson permit packet

